
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
Meeting: PEWSEY AREA BOARD 

Place: Pewsey Vale School, Wilcot Road, Pewsey, SN9 5EW 

Date: Monday 22 November 2010 

Time: 7.00 pm 

 
Including the Parishes of Alton, Beechingstoke, Burbage, Buttermere, Charlton and 
Wilsford, Chirton, Easton, Grafton, Great Bedwyn, Ham, Little Bedwyn, Manningford, 
Marden, Milton Lilbourne, North Newnton, Oare, Patney, Pewsey, Rushall, Shalbourne, 
Stanton St Bernard, Upavon, Wilcot and Huish, Woodborough, Wootton Rivers 
 

 
The Area Board welcomes and invites contributions from members of the public. 
The chairman will try to ensure that everyone who wishes to speak will have the 

opportunity to do so. 
 

   If you have any requirements that would make your attendance at the meeting easier, 
please contact your Democratic Services Officer. 

 
Refreshments and networking opportunities will be available from 6:30pm.  

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to James Hazlewood (Senior Democratic 
Services Officer), on 01722 434250 or email james.hazlewood@wiltshire.gov.uk 
Or Caroline Brailey (Pewsey Community Area Manager) 01225 718609 or email 
caroline.brailey@wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
All the papers connected with this meeting are available on the Council’s website at 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114 / 713115. 
 

 
Wiltshire Councillors 

 
Robert Hall Pewsey Vale 

Jerry Kunkler (Chairman)  Pewsey 

Stuart Wheeler (Vice Chairman) Burbage + Bedwyns 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Map enclosed at page 1 
 
 

Prior to the meeting, at 6.45pm, a short DVD will be shown detailing 
Wiltshire Council’s new approach to providing face-to-face customer 

access to council services 



Items to be considered Time 

   

1.   Welcome and Introductions  7.00pm 

2.   Apologies for Absence   

3.   Minutes   

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2010. 
  

 

4.   Declarations of Interest   

 Councillors are requested to declare any personal or prejudicial 
interests or dispensations granted by the Standards Committee.  

 

5.   Chairman's Announcements (Pages 3 - 12)  

 a. Consultation on Wiltshire Local Transport Plan (LTP) 2011-
2026 

b. Intelligence Network 
c. Winter Weather – Call for Partnership Working 
d. Pewsey Children’s Centre 
e. Reopening of Pewsey Library - 17 December 2010 

  

 

6.   Community Area Grants (Pages 13 - 22) 7.05pm 

 To determine any applications for Community Area Grants. 
  

 

7.   Living River Project  7.15pm 

 To receive a presentation on the Living River Parish Resource 
Pack. 
  

 

8.   Cabinet Representative - Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe  7.25pm 

 Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, Cabinet Representative for 
Finance, Performance and Risk, will give a brief overview of that 
area of responsibility.  The Chairman will then invite questions 
from the public. 
 
(Note: Written questions may be submitted in advance – please 
email to james.hazlewood@wiltshire.gov.uk by Wednesday 17 
November 2010) 
  
 
 
 

 



9.   Partner Updates (Pages 23 - 34) 7.35pm 

 To receive any updates from partner organisations: 
 
a. Wiltshire Police; 
b. Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service; 
c. NHS Wiltshire;  
d. Pewsey Community Area Partnership (PCAP); 
e. Pewsey Community Area Young People Issues Group 

(CAYPIG); and 
f. Parish Councils. 
  

 

10.   Census 2011 (Pages 35 - 38) 7.55pm 

 To receive a presentation on the 2011 Census. 
  

 

11.   The Great Stones Way (Pages 39 - 40) 8.05pm 

 To receive a presentation on the Great Stones Way project. 
  

 

12.   Local Transport Plan (LTP) Funding Allocation (Pages 41 - 46) 8.20pm 

 To consider and determine recommendations from the Community 
Area Transport Group (CATG) regarding the prioritisation of 
schemes for Local Transport Plan (LTP) funding. 
  

 

13.   Car Parking Strategy Consultation Feedback (Pages 47 - 48) 8.30pm 

 To receive feedback on the results of the recent consultation on 
the Car Parking Strategy.  
  

 

14.   Community Issues (Pages 49 - 50) 8.40pm 

 Councillor Stuart Wheeler will give an update on the progress 
made regarding issues which have been raised with the Area 
Board. 
  

 

15.   Highways Winter Maintenance - Provision of Grit Bins (Pages 
51 - 54) 

8.45pm 

 To prioritise and determine the location of additional Grit Bins 
within the Community Area. 
  
 
 
 

 



16.   Update on Area Board Projects (Pages 55 - 62) 8.50pm 

 To receive an update on the following two on-going projects being 
managed by the Area Board: 
 
a. Youth Funding – To consider any requests for funding from this 

budget which is ringfenced for projects benefitting young 
people. 
 

b. Reducing unnecessary Street Lighting – To consider 
recommendations in relation to the funding available to reduce 
street lighting and subsequent light pollution. 

  

 

17.   Urgent Business  9.00pm 

 Time permitting, the Chairman will invite questions and comments 
on issues not covered elsewhere in the agenda. 
  

 

18.   Future Meeting Dates and Close (Pages 63 - 64)  

 To note the Forward Plan attached. 
 
The next meeting of the Pewsey Area Board is scheduled for 
Monday 10 January 2011, 7pm at Coronation Hall, Alton Barnes, 
Wiltshire SN8 4LB. 
  

 

 
 

 
 

Future Meeting Dates 
 

Monday, 10 January 2011 
7.00 pm 

Coronation Hall, Alton Barnes, Marlborough, Wiltshire 
SN8 4LB 

 

Monday, 7 March 2011 
7.00pm 

Bouverie Hall, North Street, Pewsey, SN9 5ES 
 

Monday, 9 May 2011 
7.00pm 

Pewsey Vale School, Wilcot Road, Pewsey, SN9 5EW 
 

 
 





Reproduced from Ordnance Survey mapping with permission of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office ©Crown Copyright. Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Wiltshire Council 100049050 2010. Copyright Getmapping PLC

1:150,000

Pewsey Vale School
Wilcot Road
Pewsey
Wiltshire 
SN9 5EW

Pewsey Vale School

1:40,000

Pewsey Vale School

1:8,000

Page 1



Page 2



 

 

Pewsey Area Board – 22 November 2010 

Chairman’s Announcements 

Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2011 - 2026 

 

The Council has a statutory duty to review and publish a new Local Transport Plan 

(LTP) by the end of March 2011. In essence, Local Transport Plans steer the 

implementation of national transport policies at the local level. 

 

The Wiltshire Local Transport Plan is made up of: 

 

• A long-term transport strategy that seeks to: 

o support economic growth 

o reduce carbon emissions 

o contribute to better safety, security and health 

o promote equality of opportunity 

o improve quality of life and promote a healthy natural environment 

• A shorter-term implementation plan based on a realistic assessment of 

available funding, and 

• A number of supporting strategies and technical documents. 

 

In addition, the Local Transport Plan provides the framework for all other 

organisations with a direct or indirect involvement in transport in Wiltshire. 

 
Consultation on the draft Local Transport Plan will run from 4 October to 26 
November 2010. 
 
The preferred method of communication is for comments to be submitted online at: 
http://consult.wiltshire.gov.uk/portal, where electronic copies of all the documents will 
be available. Paper copies of the summary document, questionnaire and a reference 
copy of the Local Transport Plan will also be available from all libraries and main 
Council offices. 
 
The Council’s Cabinet and full Council will consider the results of the consultation in 
February 2011 prior to the publication of the final Local Transport Plan in March 
2011. 
 

Consultation Portal Link:  http://consult.wiltshire.gov.uk/portal 

 

Item 5a 

Page 3



Page 4



 

 

 

 
Pewsey Area Board – 22 November 2010 
 
Chairman’s Announcements 
 
Wiltshire Intelligence Network 

 

 

New Research Website Launched 
A new website has been created to provide access to a wide variety 
of information and research for Wiltshire.  The new site, 
www.intelligencenetwork.org.uk, is available to all and aims to support 
planners and policy makers, community leaders and politicians, 
voluntary groups and the general public in using accurate data to 
make informed decisions. A broad range of information is available, 
organised into the following topic themes: 

• Consultation  
• Local Area Profiles  
• Population & Census  
• Health & Wellbeing  
• Education & Skills  
• Economy  
• Crime & Community Safety  
• Community  
• Planning & Housing  
• Transport & Communications  
• Environment, Climate Change, Waste & Recycling  
• Culture, Leisure & Tourism 

The content of the site will continue to grow over the coming months and the 
research team is keen to hear any suggestions for content that people would like to 
see on the site. The site was developed by Wiltshire Council’s corporate research 
team in the Department of Public Health and Wellbeing, in conjunction with the 
South West Observatory and working in partnership with NHS Wiltshire and Wiltshire 
Police. For more information, or to give your views and feedback, please contact 
Sally Hunter on 01225 713289, or email sally.hunter@wiltshire.gov.uk. 

Item 5b 

Page 5



Page 6



 

 

Pewsey Area Board – 22 November 2010 

Chairman’s Announcements 

Adverse Winter Weather – Call for Partnership Working 
 
Wiltshire Council is looking to expand its partnership working with the city, town and 
parish councils should problems be caused by adverse winter conditions. 
 
Wiltshire Council is encouraging local Councils to record their interest in working with 
us to help provide services during adverse weather conditions.  This could involve 
being a local agent for storing salt, or refilling salt bins, or mechanical salting of 
footpaths and roads.       
 
This partnership working will help us jointly to provide a better and more extensive 
coverage at a time when resources will be fully stretched.  
 
The local councils are asked to register their interest via their Community Area 
Manager before 30 November 2010. 
 

Item 5c 

Page 7



Page 8



 
 
 
 
Pewsey Area Board – 22 November 2010 
 
Chairman’s Announcements 
 
Pewsey Children’s Centre 
 
The first session in the newly built Children's Centre took place on Saturday 
23 October, and this was in the form of a family learning event. 
 
The Children’s Centre is now open from Monday to Friday 8.30 am to 4.30 
pm. 
 
The official opening of the nursery took place on 1 November. 
 

There will be an official opening ceremony in the near future, most likely in the 
New Year. 
 
 
Telephone: 01672 562351* 
Website www.vak.org.uk 
Email: children@voluntary-action-kennet.org.uk 
 
 
*from 22 November 
 
 

 

Item 5d 

Page 9



Page 10



 
 
 

Item 5e 
Pewsey Area Board – 22 November 2010 
 
Chairman’s Announcements 
 
Pewsey Library Opening 
 
The official opening of the new Pewsey library will take place on Friday 17 
December and the doors will open to the public for the first time at 2pm. The 
new library is larger and has more stock than the previous temporary building. 
Pewsey residents have had the opportunity to suggest new books they would 
like to see in the new library and there will be a wide range of titles to appeal 
to all age groups. It will be the first in Wiltshire to offer a personal care room, 
providing washing and changing facilities for adults and children with severe 
disabilities which will be available to everyone, not just those visiting the 
library. 
  

There will also be a meeting room, called the Wootton Room, for council staff 
to meet with the public by appointment, and touch down facilities for council 
staff working locally in the community. 
  

The new library will have longer opening hours and will be open on Saturday 
mornings. The last day of the temporary mobile library service will be 
Saturday 4 December 
 

Page 11



Page 12



  1 Report No 
 

1 

 
 

ITEM 6 
 

Report to Pewsey Area Board 

Date of Meeting 22 November 2010 

Title of Report Community Area Grants  

  

 

Purpose of Report 
 
 
To ask Councillors to consider ten applications seeking 20010/11 Community Area Grant 
Funding. 
 

1. Burbage & Easton Royal Cricket Club – To purchase a new storage shed. Seeking 
£3,934.  Recommended for approval. 
 

2. Burbage Village Hall – To replace the remaining single glazed village hall external 
windows.  Seeking £1,300.  Recommended for approval. 
 

3. Burbage News – To reinvent the Burbage News this will unify all local newsletters.  
Seeking £1,000.   
 

4. Burbage Parish Council – Construction of footpath from A338 Burbage roundabout, 
south, to Marr Green Farm Shop.  Seeking £1,860.  Recommended for approval. 
 

5. Shalbourne Village Hall Committee – To repair and replace eroding stonework 
forming the entrance to the village hall.  Seeking £1,382.  Recommended for 
approval. 
 

6. Shalbourne Recreation Ground – To refurbish and update kitchen at the Club 
Pavillion.  Seeking £2,843.  Recommended for approval. 
 

7. Pewsey Vale Bowls Club – To purchase and install an automated watering system 
for the bowling green. Seeking £4,993.  Recommended for approval. 
 

8. Patney Parish Council – To purchase and install new hardwood notice board.  
Seeking £251.  Recommended for approval. 
 

9. Alton Barnes Parish Council – To purchase and install new notice board.  Seeking 
£75.  Recommended for approval. 
 

10. Coronation Hall Committee, Alton Barnes – To refurbish the hall floor.  Seeking 
£800.  Recommended for approval.  

 

Page 13



  2 Report No 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1. Area Boards have authority to approve Area Grants under powers delegated to 

them by the Deputy Leader and Cabinet member for Community Services                
(27 February 2010).  Under the Scheme of Delegation Area Boards must adhere to 
the Area Board Grants Guidance for funding.   
 

1.2. In accordance with the Scheme of Delegation, any decision of an Area Board that 
is contrary to the funding criteria and/or the officer's recommendation would need 
to demonstrate that the application in question has a wider community benefit, and 
give specific reasons as to why this should justify an exception to the criteria. 

 
1.3. In accordance with the Area Board Grants Guidance officers are required to 

provide recommendations in their report, however, the decision to support 
applications and to what level is made by Wiltshire Councillors on this Area Board. 

 
1.4. Funding applications will be considered at every Area Board meeting (providing 

there is money available). 
 

1.5. Pewsey Area Board has been allocated a 2010/2011 budget of £44,949 for 
community grants, community partnership core funding and councillor led 
initiatives.  The carry forward from the 2009/2010 budget is £38. This gives a total 
budget of £44,987 for 2010/2011.   At the last meeting the Area Board approved 
grants totalling £5,377 which leaves a total budget of £27,713. 
 

1.6. A decision has been made in 2010/2011 that paper copies of funding applications 
will no longer appear as part of the agenda in an attempt to reduce volume of 
paper used.  However, the application forms will be available on the Wiltshire 
Council web site and hard copies available upon request. 
 

1.7. The 2010/2011 funding criteria and application forms are available on the council’s 
website (www.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboards) or paper versions are available from the 
Community Area Manager. 

 

 
Background 
documents used in 
the preparation of 
this Report 
  

 

• Community Area Grant Application Pack  20010/11 

• Pewsey Community Area Plan 
 

 
2. Main Considerations 

 
2.1. Councillors will need to be satisfied that grants awarded in the 2010/11 year are 

made to projects that can realistically proceed within a year of the award being 
made.   
 

2.2. There will be six rounds of funding during 20010/11. The fourth is contained in this 
report the remaining will take place on; 

Page 14



  3 Report No 
 

 

• 10 January 2011 

• 7 March 2011 (subject to available funds) 
 

3. Environmental & Community  Implications 
 

Community Area Grants will contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of 
cultural, social and community activity and wellbeing in the community area, the 
extent and specifics of which will be dependent upon the individual project. 

 
4. Financial Implications 

 
4.1. Awards must fall within the Area Boards budget allocated to the Pewsey Area 

Board. 
 

4.2. If grants are awarded in line with officer recommendations, Pewsey Area Board will 
have a balance of £9,274.  
 

5. Legal Implications 
 
5.1. There are no specific Legal implications related to this report. 
 
6. HR Implications 

 
6.1. There are no specific HR implications related to this report. 

 
7. Equality and Inclusion Implications 

 
7.1. Community Area Grants give all local community and voluntary groups, Town and 

Parish Councils an equal opportunity to receive funding towards community based 
projects and schemes. 

 
7.2. Implications relating to individual grant applications are outlined within section 8 

where applicable – “Officer recommendations”. 
 
8. Officer recommendations 
 

Ref Applicant Project proposal 
Funding 
requested 

8.1 
(85) 

Burbage & Easton 
Royal Cricket Club 

To purchase new storage shed £3,934 

 
8.1.1. Officer recommendation is that this application be approved  

 
8.1.2. The application meets grant criteria 2010/11 
 
8.1.3. The application demonstrates a link to the (20010/11) Community Plan on page 15 

Page 15



  4 Report No 
 

increasing levels of obesity; page 25 closure of leisure centre, p26 improving sports 
and leisure facilities.  
 

8.1.4. The applicant is Burbage & Easton Royal Cricket Club, a Sports Club which is a 
not for profit organisation.  There are 15 people involved in the management of the 
organisation.   The Club is contributing £3934 in match funding. 
 

8.1.5. The project is to replace a very old shed to keep new equipment safe and secure. 
The existing shed is not fit for purpose, it is falling down and too small for the 
amount of equipment.  A tractor was damaged recently as there is no method of 
locking the existing shed. 

 
8.1.6. If the Area Board made the decision not to fund the project, or give less than 

requested the group would have to look at other funding and make cutbacks on the 
planned expenditure (£4k of improvements and equipment upgrades for 2011). 

  

Ref Applicant Project proposal 
Funding 
requested 

8.2.  
(80) 
  

Burbage Village Hall 
 
 

To replace the single glazed 
external windows 
 

£1,300 
 
 

 
8.2.1. Officer recommendation is that this application be approved  
 
8.2.2. The application meets grant criteria 2010/11. 
 
8.2.3. The application doesn’t demonstrate a specific link to the Pewsey Community Area 

Plan but it is recognised that village halls are part of the fabric of local communities, 
and a vital resource for local people for recreation, social events, meetings etc, 
much of which is included in the Pewsey Community Area Plan.  Village halls help 
to facilitate many of the objectives of the Plan. 

 
8.2.4. The applicant is Burbage Village Hall which is a registered charity.  The Hall 

Committee is contributing £1,300 in match funding. 
 
8.2.5. The project is to replace the remaining single glazed village hall external windows.  

This will ensure that all external windows are double glazed and weatherproofed. 
 

8.2.6. The project will ensure the continued availability of the hall as a village asset with 
all that it offers.  Heating bills will be reduced, as will carbon emissions and it will 
provide an enhanced level of security. 

 
8.2.7. If the Area Board decided not to approve this application the project could not 

proceed as it would deplete the reserves of the hall below the minimal level judged 
prudent by the Management Committee and Auditors. 

 
 
 
 

Page 16



  5 Report No 
 

 
 
 

Ref Applicant Project proposal 
Funding 
requested 

8.3 (88) 
Burbage News 
 

To produce a free monthly A5 
edition of Burbage News 
 

£1,000 
 

 
8.3.1 Officer Recommendation is that this application be approved. 

 
8.3.2 The application meets grant criteria 2010/11 

 
8.3.3 The application doesn’t demonstrate a specific link to the Community Plan, however 

the publication will provide better communications for the village, and an increased 
awareness of issues and events.   
 

8.3.4  The applicant is Burbage News, a not for profit organisation which is run by two 
local volunteers, and which uses local volunteers to distribute the newspaper.  The 
organisation has confirmed it is contributing £2,000 in match funding.  £3,500 is still 
to be confirmed. 
 

8.3.5 The project is to provide start up funding to support the production of the newspaper 
during the first year.  The newspaper has been trialled since August to get a view as 
to whether parishioners would like to receive a monthly publication. The newspaper 
has received positive reviews.  The new Burbage News aims to amalgamate 
existing publications such as the old bi-monthly Burbage News, and the monthly 
church magazine. 
 

8.3.6 All the costs incurred so far in producing the trial versions of the magazine, except 
the printing costs, have been waivered by volunteers giving their time for free.  The 
in-kind contribution is approximately £400 per month.  Advertising revenue will help 
towards funding the magazine but there is currently a shortfall in the amount 
needed for printing costs. 
 

8.3.7 If the Area Board makes a decision not to fund the project the organisers will try and 
find funding from other source, although the likelihood of success is not known. 
 

Ref Applicant Project proposal 
Funding 
requested 

8.4 
(95) 

Burbage Parish 
Council 

Construction of footpath from 
A338 Burbage roundabout, south, 
to Marr Green Farm Shop. 

£1,860 

 
8.4.1 Officer Recommendation is that this application be approved.  

 
8.4.2 The application meets grant criteria 2010/11  

Page 17



  6 Report No 
 

 
8.4.3 There is no specific link to the community plan but the provision of local services is 

important to rural communities, and access to them is important. 
 

8.4.4 The applicant is the Burbage Parish Council.  The Parish Council is contributing 
£2,000 towards the project, of which £1,000 is a donation to them from the Farm 
Shop.   
 

8.4.5 The project is to construct a footpath which will be suitable for mothers and carers 
of small children and buggies to pass easily and safely. 
 

8.4.6 Local people have expressed a need for this footpath, as at the moment people 
need to walk in the road which is not safe.  The installation of the footpath will 
encourage more residents to use the farm shop.  Increased trade would support 
rural businesses and regenerate the village. 
 

8.4.7 If the Area Board makes a decision not to fund the project it will delay the project 
significantly.  The Parish are able to contribute towards the project but could not 
afford to fund it in total without raising the precept. 

 
 

Ref Applicant Project proposal 
Funding 
requested 

8.5 (43) 
Shalbourne Village 
Hall Committee 

To repair and replace eroding 
stonework forming the entrance 
to the village hall. 

£1,382 

 
8.5.1 Officer Recommendation is that this application be approved. 

 
8.5.2 The application meets grant criteria 2010/11 

 
8.5.3 The application doesn’t demonstrate a specific link to the Pewsey Community Area 

Plan but it is recognised that village halls are part of the fabric of local communities, 
and a vital resource for local people for recreation, social events, meetings etc, 
much of which is included in the Pewsey Community Area Plan.  Village halls help 
to facilitate many of the objectives of the Plan.  
 

8.5.4 The applicant is the Shalbourne Village Hall Committee, a not for profit 
organisation.  The Parish Council is contributing £1,500 towards the project.   
 

8.5.5 The project is for the repair and or replacement of eroding stonework forming the 
entrance to the village hall.   
 

8.5.6  The village hall facilities are for the benefit of all.  The village hall provides the ideal 
community meeting place for many types of activity thereby assisting all good 
community activities and relations. 
 

8.5.7 If the Area Board makes a decision not to fund the project the repairs will not be 

Page 18



  7 Report No 
 

able to go ahead and the stonework will further erode. 
 

Ref Applicant Project proposal 
Funding 
requested 

8.6 
(89) 

Shalbourne 
Recreation Ground 

To refurbish and update kitchen 
at the Club Pavilion 

£2,843 

 
8.6.1 Officer Recommendation is that this application be approved.  

 
8.6.2 The application meets grant criteria 2010/11 

 
8.6.3 There is no specific link to the community plan but the pavilion is an important part 

of the sports and social facilities provided at the ground.  The proposals link well 
with community aspirations for self sufficient, self-reliant healthy socially inclusive 
communities envisaged for the future, and builds on progress made (playground 
refurbishment).  Creation of enhanced facilities will lead to greater use of area. 
 

8.6.4 The applicant is the Shalbourne Club, which is a registered charity and has a 
management group of 14 people.   The Club is contributing £2844 towards the 
project with an additional £600 worth of in kind contribution.  
 

8.6.5 The project is for the refurbishment and updating of the kitchen at the Club pavilion 
to include the purchase and installation of new cupboards, shelves, sink, table and 
white goods.  There are concerns about safety and the ability to satisfy hygiene 
regulations.  It is hoped that the pavilion will be rebuilt in the future, and the items 
purchased will be transferred.  This may be some time off as funds need to be 
raised. 
 

8.6.6 The recreation ground is open to everyone without charge and the club takes all 
such steps to encourage its use.  The ground provides the only outdoor facility in 
the village which free and open access.  Free events are held and those which are 
charged are as reasonable as possible in order to cover costs.  The club will be 
rented out to users. 
 

8.6.7 If the Area Board makes a decision not to fund the project it will divert funds put 
towards the rebuild project which the club needs to use to obtain advice and plans. 
 

 

Ref Applicant Project proposal 
Funding 
requested 

8.70 
 (82) 

Pewsey Vale Bowls 
Club 

To purchase and install an 
automated watering system for 
the bowling green 

£4,993 

 
8.7.1 Officer Recommendation is that this application be approved.  

Page 19



  8 Report No 
 

 
8.7.2 The application meets grant criteria 2010/11  

 
8.7.3 The application links with the community plan in that there is a need to improve 

sports facilities.  Section 6.7 page 26 
 

8.7.4 The applicant is Pewsey Vales Bowls Club which is a not for profit organisation.    
The Club is contributing £4,993 towards the project. 
 

8.7.5 The project is to purchase and install an automated watering system for the bowling 
green.  This will replace an existing manual system which was ineffective in the long 
dry spell this spring/summer and is labour intensive for the club’s team of volunteer 
ground staff. 
 

8.7.6 The club has 75 members and 300 visiting players.  Members of the Club come 
mainly from Pewsey but there are some members living in surrounding villages 
including  Burbage, Milton Lilbourne, Collingbourne Kingston, Ludgershall, 
Tidworth, Upavon, Devizes, Woodborough, All Cannings, Marlborough and 
Mildenhall. 
 

8.7.7 The club currently have reserves but around £3000 of working capital is needed 
throughout the winter months to undertake normal green maintenance, maintain 
machinery, purchase environment friendly fertilisers and sprays, heat and power for 
the clubhouse. 
 

8.7.8 If the Area Board makes a decision not to fund the project the club could purchase it 
from their reserves but the working capital would then fall to a level that would make 
it difficult to sustain outgoings over the winter months. 
 
 

Ref Applicant Project proposal 
Funding 
requested 

8.8 
 (83) 

Patney Parish 
Council 

To purchase and install a new 
hardwood noticeboard 

£251 

 
8.8.1 Officer Recommendation is that this application be approved.   

 
8.8.2 The application meets grant criteria 2010/11.  

 
8.8.3 The application has no direct link with the Pewsey Community Area Plan, however 

it is recognised that communication in rural villages is vital, and notice boards 
provide a much needed resource for the community. 
 

8.8.4 The applicant is Patney Parish Council who are match funding with £251.  
 

8.8.5 The project is to purchase a new notice board to replace the existing one which is in 
poor condition.   

Page 20



  9 Report No 
 

 
8.8.6 The village has approximately 140 residents.  The notice board is an important 

means for communicating as the village has no village hall, post office or shop. 
 

8.8.7 If the Area Board makes a decision not to fund the project the project would be 
delayed.  The precept is current very low, and if this needed to be added it would be 
a 50% increase.  The Parish Council reserves are low. 
 

Ref Applicant Project proposal 
Funding 
requested 

8.9 
 (70) 

Alton Barnes Parish 
Council 

To make a new Parish Council 
noticeboard 

£75 

 
8.9.1 Officer Recommendation is that this application be approved. 

 
8.9.2 The application meets grant criteria 2010/11  

 
8.9.3 The application has no direct link with the Pewsey Community Area Plan, however 

it is recognised that communication in rural villages is vital, and notice boards 
provide a much needed resource for the community. 
 

8.9.4 The applicant is Alton Barnes Parish Council who are match funding with £75.  
 

8.9.5 The project is to replace the current damaged notice board.  Due to the age of the 
existing board and the amount of materials needed to refurbish it, the parish Council 
decided it would be cheaper to replace with a new notice board rather than attempt 
a repair. 
 

8.9.6 If the Area Board makes a decision not to fund the project there will be a significant 
delay while other funding is sought. 
 

Ref Applicant Project proposal 
Funding 
requested 

8.10 
 (79) 

Coronation Hall 
Committee, Alton 
Barnes 

Refurbishment of the hall floor £800 

 
8.10.1 Officer Recommendation is that this application be approved.  

 
8.10.2 The application meets grant criteria 2010/11  

 
8.10.3 The application doesn’t demonstrate a specific link to the Pewsey Community Area 

Plan but it is recognised that village halls are part of the fabric of local communities, 
and a vital resource for local people for recreation, social events, meetings etc, 
much of which is included in the Pewsey Community Area Plan.  Village halls help 

Page 21



  10 Report No 
 

to facilitate many of the objectives of the Plan. 
 

8.10.4 The applicant is the Coronation Hall Committee, a not for profit organisation.  The 
applicant is not providing any match funding towards the project. 
 

8.10.5 The project is to refurbish the hall floor which will involve sanding down, cleaning, 
oiling and buffing processes.  
 

8.10.6 If the Area Board makes a decision not to fund the project the Committee would 
have to delay the project until they have built up enough funds, which could take 
some time. 

 
No unpublished documents have been relied upon in the preparation of this report. 
 
Report Author Caroline Brailey, Pewsey Community Area Manager 

Tel:01225 718609 
E-mail caroline.brailey@wiltshire.gov.uk 

Appendices – available 
online only. 

Grant Application forms 

 

 

Page 22



ITEM 9a 

Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 1

 
 

1. Neighbourhood Policing  
 
Team Sergeant: Ben Braine 

   
 Pewsey West 
 Beat Manager – PC Richard Barratt 
 PCSO – currently vacant (patrol provided by Polly Ritchie) 
 

Pewsey East 
 Beat Manager – PC Mark Lewis 
 PCSO – Coralee Nash 
  
   
 
 

2. NPTs - Current Priorities & Consultation Opportunities: 
 
Up-to-date details about Neighbourhood Policing Teams including team membership, 
current priorities and forthcoming community consultation events can be found on our 
Wiltshire Police Website.  
* Visit the new and improved website at: www.wiltshire.police.uk   
 

 

3. Police Authority Representative: Mrs Gill Mortimer  

Please contact via Wiltshire Police Authority Tel. 01380 734022 or 
http://www.wiltshire-pa.gov.uk/feedback.asp  
 

 

4. Performance and Other Local Issues 
 

Unfortunately our area has seen a marked increase in non-residential burglary in 
recent months.  Typically we expect up to five monthly within our Community Area but 
we hit a peak of 15 during September.  I am in the process of having some analytical 
work done and your Neighbourhood Team is in the process of reviewing the 
investigations to date.  Whilst there appear to be no substantive leads on suspects at 
this stage, intelligence points toward two individuals known to us for rural crime.  
I am preparing a bid for support from our wider Division which will include a variety of 
measures that will make life difficult for those concerned in rural crime.  The County 
Rural Crime Team & local police are meeting with local landowners in this regard. 
Initial analysis indicates that the offences occur from East to West right across our 
Community Area from Chirton to Ham.  Increased vigilance in these areas is 
advisable. 
 

 

 

 

Crime and Community Safety Briefing Paper 
Pewsey Community Area Board 

22
nd
 November 2010 

 

Page 23



ITEM 9a 

Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 2

CRIME & DETECTIONS (November compared to previous year) 

 

PEWSEY CRIME  DETECTIONS 

  NOV 2008 - OCT 2010 
 

NOV 2008 - OCT 

2010 

  2008/09 2009/10  + / - % Change  2008/09 2009/10 

Violence Against the Person 52 70 18 34.6%  69.2% 42.9% 

Dwelling Burglary 18 26 8 44.4%  11.1% 11.5% 

Criminal Damage 80 68 -12 -15.0%  13.8% 7.4% 

Non Dwelling Burglary 30 64 34 113.3%  3.3% 0.0% 

Theft from Motor Vehicle 42 54 12 28.6%  0.0% 0.0% 

Theft of Motor Vehicle 18 11 -7 -38.9%  16.7% 9.1% 

Total Crime 358 416 58 16.2%  21.2% 16.1% 

County Division is compared with 15 most similar divisions in other Forces.  Currently we are performing 

well e.g. ranked 3rd  (out of 15) for violent crime and 4th (out of 15) for violent crime detections. 

 
 
 
 
Anti-Social-Behaviour – reported incidents  
 

Yearly 

Average/month 

1/10/09 – 

31/12/09 

1/1/10 -

31/3/10 

1/4/10 -

30/6/10 

1/7/10 – 

30/9/10 

75.5 67 61 77 97 

 
 
Inspector Andrew Noble 
Area Commander       

Page 24



Report for Pewsey Area Board

The following is a bi-monthly update of Fire and Rescue Service activity up to and including 

October 2010.  It has been prepared by the Group Manager for the Board�s area.

0

4

8

12

16

20

2008/12 2009/02 2009/04 2009/06 2009/08 2009/10 2009/12 2010/02 2010/04 2010/06 2010/08 2010/10

14

12

18

8

20

18
17

13

10

13

10

20

1
2

5

2
1 1

3

1

4

2 2

0

11

3
2 2

4 4

1

4

1
0

1
2

Co-responder Road Traffic Collisions Other Non Fire incidents

Non-Fire incidents attended by WFRS

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

2008/12 2009/02 2009/04 2009/06 2009/08 2009/10 2009/12 2010/02 2010/04 2010/06 2010/08 2010/10

0
1

0

2
1 1

0 0

2
1 1

2

5

12

9

4
5

4

2

17

4

8

4

1

Deliberate Fires
Accidental or Unknown
Fires

Fires by Cause

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2008/12 2009/02 2009/04 2009/06 2009/08 2009/10 2009/12 2010/02 2010/04 2010/06 2010/08 2010/10

5

13

9
6 6 5

2

17

6
9

5
3

38 38

45

24

38

33
31

37

28 29 28

34

50

54 53

31

48

52

43

54

40

50

38

56

Fires All Incidents All 999 calls

Incidents and Calls

Valid on: 01/11/2010  18:24:13 Subject to change

Page 25



0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

2008/12 2009/02 2009/04 2009/06 2009/08 2009/10 2009/12 2010/02 2010/04 2010/06 2010/08 2010/10

0 0 0

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0

2

7

2

0

1

0

3

1

0 0

Deaths in Fires Injuries in Fires
Other Death (exc
co-responder)

Other injuries (exc
co-responder)

Death & Injuries in incidents attended by
WFRS

Comments and Interventions overleaf

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

2008/12 2009/02 2009/04 2009/06 2009/08 2009/10 2009/12 2010/02 2010/04 2010/06 2010/08 2010/10

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5

3 3

0

1

4

3 3

2 2

1

2

1

4

6

5

6

1

5

0

4

2

6

5

False Alarm - Hoax Call False Alarm Good Intent
False Alarm Due to
Equipment

F
a

ls
e

 A
la

rm
 I

n
c

id
e

n
ts

Number of False Alarm Incidents

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

2008/12 2009/02 2009/04 2009/06 2009/08 2009/10 2009/12 2010/02 2010/04 2010/06 2010/08 2010/10

23 22
26

5

17
12

19
12 10 8

22

66

0 1 10
0 1 1 1 1

3 9 2
4

8 2
5 1

3
1

3 3 3 2 2 2

HFSC-Service HFSC-partners Other Community Safety

Home Fire Safety Checks and other domestic safety

Pewsey Area Board

Valid on: 01/11/2010  18:24:13 Subject to change

Page 26



ITEM 9c 

 

 
NHS Update – November 2010 
 
Re-appointment of NHS Wiltshire Chair  
Tony Barron has been re-appointed to serve as Chair on the PCT board from 1 

January 2011 until 31 December 2014.  The appointment has been made in 
accordance with the OPCA Code of Practice. 
  
Comprehensive Spending Review  
Everyone working in the NHS is acutely aware of the need to make our budgets 
go further in the future.  Nationally, the NHS is required to make £20bn savings 
per annum over the next three years, and the money will be reinvested back into 
patient care.  We are working closely with our local partners to think carefully 
about how we can play our part in that process by delivering care differently in 
the years ahead so that we can reduce costs and improve quality. 
 
Consultation Documents 
The Secretary of State for Health, Andrew Lansley, has published two further 
consultation documents seeking views on proposals set out in the White Paper, 
Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS 
 
“Liberating the NHS: Greater choice and control – A consultation on proposals” 
and “Liberating the NHS: An Information Revolution - A consultation on 
proposals”.  The documents are available electronically at  
www.dh.gov.uk/liberatingtheNHS 
 
“Liberating the NHS: Greater choice and control – A consultation on proposals”  
envisage choice of treatment and healthcare provider becoming the reality in the 
vast majority of NHS funded services by no later than 2013-14. 
 
The second consultation “Liberating the NHS: An Information Revolution - A 
consultation on proposals” is about transforming the way information is, 
collected, analysed controlled and used in NHS and adult social care services.  

 
These consultations are opportunities to seek the views of patients, the wider 
public  and the NHS, about the challenges that lie ahead, how we can 
successfully address them, and how we best take forward the choice and 
information commitments.  
 
The consultation period for both documents will close on 14 January 2011 and 
we encourage anyone interested to contribute. 
 
Staying healthy this winter 
The NHS is gearing up for its busiest season of the year. Common viruses such 
as flu and the ‘winter vomiting’ bug, norovirus, often take hold just as the cold 
weather starts to bite, causing extra challenges to our health services. One of the 

Page 27



ITEM 9c 

 

biggest problems is keeping viruses from spreading, and NHS Wiltshire is asking 
people who may be infectious to stay at home and use the phone.  
 
Flu vaccinations 
GP practices around the county have started running flu vaccination clinics. This 
year the vaccine contains protection against H1N1 (no longer considered a 
pandemic, but one of this season’s predominant strains of flu) as well as other 
strains of the virus. One simple injection should provide complete protection, and 
we’re urging anyone who hasn’t already been vaccinated to contact their GP. 
 
Norovirus – stopping the spread 
The ‘winter vomiting bug’ Norovirus caused serious disruption in hospitals across 
the southwest last winter, and NHS Wiltshire, together with our hospital 
colleagues, is urging everyone to play their part in preventing the spread of this 
distressing illness as this year’s winter season looms. 
 
We are all asking anyone who has had vomiting or diarrhoea in the last 48 hours 
not to visit friends or relatives in hospital or in a care home. 
 
If you do have diarrhoea and/or vomiting, the advice is also to ring your GP’s 
surgery if you have any concerns – and NOT to go to the surgery. The triage 
nurse or GP on call can tell you over the phone if you need to be seen – in cases 
where the patient is a child, for instance, or has another medical condition that 
could lead to vomiting – and this will avoid bugs spreading through busy waiting 
rooms. 
 
Apart from hospitals, schools are one of the main breeding-grounds for vomiting 
and other bugs. If your child vomits or has diarrhoea, it is vital to keep them away 
from school for a full 24 hours from the last attack. 
 
Finally, as norovirus is extremely infectious, keeping hard surfaces clean and 
washing hands thoroughly is very important. More detail on norovirus is available 
from the Health Protection Agency,  

 
NHS Stop Smoking Walk-in Clinic for Devizes 
NHS Wiltshire have opened a new Stop Smoking Walk-in Clinic in Devizes in 
order to meet the increasing demand for people wanting to quit. 
The Devizes Stop Smoking Clinic will run as a “walk-in” clinic every Tuesday  
between 1.30pm and 3pm in the Outpatients Clinic at Devizes Hospital. 
There is no need for people to make an appointment, people can simply call 
in, and they will be seen by a Specialist NHS Advisor.   
 
Win for Wiltshire in health awards 
NHS Wiltshire’s Head of Primary Care, Jo Cullen has won a regional award 
for leading the team which brought about a new, single out-of-hours GP 
service for the whole of Wiltshire. 

Page 28



ITEM 9c 

 

 
Beds have reopened at Savernake Hospital 
All 24 inpatient beds at Savernake Hospital have re-opened.  
 
The Annual General Meeting and Board meeting of NHS Wiltshire will be held on 
Wednesday 17 November at 10am - 2010 at Southgate House.  Members of 
the public are welcome to attend. 
 
Papers are published a week before the meeting on www.wiltshire.nhs.uk or on 
request from Stacey Saunders, NHS Wiltshire (tel: 01380 733839, email: 
stacey.saunders@wiltshire.nhs.uk). For further information or copies of 
documents referred to above, please contact Jo Howes, Community 
Engagement Manager, 01380 733929 or jo.howes@wiltshire.nhs 

Page 29



Page 30



Update for Pewsey Area Board Item 9f 

 

 

 

Update from 
 

Grafton Parish Council 

Date of Area Board Meeting 
 

22 November 2010 

 

 

Headlines/Key Issues 
 

 

• On-going speeding issues in Wilton are being progressed with the Police 
 

 

• The Mushroom Forage & Feast in October was very well supported, raising over £1700 
for defibrillators and the Coronation Hall 

 

 

•  
 

 
Projects  
 

 

• Access to Technology – sessions are now underway 
 

 

• Friends of Grafton – fixtures now completed at the hall 
 

 

• Public Access Defibrillators – first purchases are being put forward at November PC 
meeting for approval 
 

 
Future Events/Dates for the diary 
 

 

• 3rd December – Wilton Windmill Society AGM at the Coronation Hall 
 

 

• 19th December – Father Christmas arrives in Grafton Parish! 
 

 
 
Signed:  

Date:  
 

 

Page 31



Page 32



Update for Pewsey Area Board Item 9f 
 

 

 

Update from 
 

RUSHALL PARISH COUNCIL 

Date of Area Board Meeting 
 

22 November 2010 

 

 

Headlines/Key Issues 
 

 

• Safe pedestrian access due to limited pathways and the lack of emergency escape. 
 

 

• Speed of traffic through the village. 
 

 

• Volume and size of traffic using Pewsey Road through Rushall as a main route. 
 

 
Projects  
 

 

• Parish Council ‘Study into Safe Pedestrian Access in Rushall’ completed, passed to WC 
who have analysed the study and prioritised the schemes into the overall programme. 

 

 

• Community Speed Watch in Rushall. 
 

 

• Relocation of speed signs at the entry points to Rushall and removal of A345 route 
signs. 
 

 
Future Events/Dates for the diary 
 

 

• Wiltshire Council conducting assessment into feasibility and costs of Rushall ‘Safe 
Pedestrian Access’ schemes – complete by March 2010.  

 

 

• C SW being monitored by Police due to the high volume and speed of offenders. 
 

 

• 30 mph speed signs to be re-located in conjunction with change of 60mph signs. 
 
Signed: C P Gale (Rushall Parish Councillor) 

Date: 10 November 2010 
 

     

Page 33



Page 34



 

Pewsey Area Board 22 November Month 2010    Item 10 

Help tomorrow take shape – the 2011 Census 

 

The 2011 Census is coming: 

• The census has collected information about the population every ten years since 
1801 (except in 1941). The next census in England and Wales is on 27th March 
2011 

• The 2011 Census will produce a high quality estimate of the population. It is a 
count of the people and households in England and Wales. The census is carried 
out by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) on behalf on Parliament  

• Everyone is asked the same questions in order to take a snapshot of the 
population at one moment in time 

• The census tells us how many people live where and the types of people they 
are, for example whether they are young, old, married, single, etc. This means 
decisions, like working out who needs facilities in the future, are focused on 
accurate, relevant details 

• You can find out all general information about the census at www.census.gov.uk  
 

The 2011 Census is vitally important for Wiltshire and its communities: 

• Census data is used to ensure that all the required local facilities and services 
needed across Wiltshire can be accurately identified 

• Central funding allocation for Wiltshire is heavily influenced by the census data – 
it is estimated that Wiltshire Council will potentially lose around £500 per person 
per year for 10 years for every person not counted 

 

What Wiltshire Council and ONS would like local councils to do: 

• Publicise and promote the 2011 Census in your community 

• Use your expert local knowledge to let us know about potential areas that may be 
hard to count in your  community such as  travellers, communes, religious 
establishments, migrant workers for example 

• Promote locally that there are around 250 Census jobs being created across 
Wiltshire in 2011 and, as well as getting paid, that this is a great opportunity for 
knowledgeable local people to be part of something that will benefit their 
community.  You can find out more information and apply for all available jobs at 
www.censusjobs.co.uk. 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 35



Page 36



Item 10 

 

 

2011 CENSUS  

 

 

What is the census used for? 

The census is vitally important for communities, making sure that the facilities and services can be identified. 
All sorts of decisions are taken based on census statistics, from the number of car parking spaces needed at 
local supermarkets, to where to locate bank branches and even the allocation of fire engines. Numbers of 
school places, development of traffic systems and funding for local authorities are all heavily influenced by the 
census. It’s all about planning ahead. The census, a rich source of statistics, affects all of us in one way or 
another, as decisions about the communities we live in take place all the time. 
 
The 2011 Census is run by the Office for National Statistics (ONS). 

 

Key messages: 

The 2011 Census is coming 

The census collects information about the population every ten years. The next census in England and Wales 

is in March 2011. 

 

A census counts everybody and describes society 

The population’s characteristics are always changing. A census collects and shares facts about society’s 

make-up. 

 

Your community and family benefit 

You need to take part so that the services and facilities your community / family need can be identified. These 

services include schools, hospitals and emergency services. 

 

A census is a fantastic source of historical information  

Everyone should be proud of playing their part in the census; the statistics are available for you. ONS’s census 

is respected worldwide. 

 

Define your identity in 2011 

You will know that you have played your part in helping tomorrow take shape in your community  

 

Page 37



Item 10 

 

 

 

Your census answers are confidential  

Personal census information is never shared with any other government department, nationally, regionally, or 

locally. The information collected is kept confidential by ONS and protected by law. 

 

Complete the census online (www.census.gov.uk) 

Completing the census online is straightforward, convenient and secure.  

 

Returning your census questionnaire is required by law 

Completing the census is a legal requirement: the few people who don’t complete their census questionnaire 

may be prosecuted for breaking the law, could face a criminal record and may be fined up to £1,000.  

 

The next census is on Sunday 27 March  

The answers you give on your census questionnaire should be about Sunday 27 March, so that ONS can take 

an accurate picture of the population on the same day. 

 

It’s straightforward 

Completing the census is straightforward. Most questions can be answered by simply clicking, or ticking, in a 

box. 

 

Your census questionnaire is kept secure 

Your personal information is protected by lots of layers of security. 

 

Help and support is available 

The census is straightforward. Help and support is available from online help at www.census.gov.uk. 

 

 

Page 38



ITEM 11 

 
THE GREAT STONES WAY 

 
A HIGHLY ATTRACTIVE NEW WALKING ROUTE BETWEEN 

AVEBURY AND STONEHENGE 
 

The ancient Ridgeway follows the sweep of the chalk escarpment across the 
country for some 360 miles, between Lyme Regis in Dorset on the south coast 
and Hunstanton on The Wash on the east coast.  An 85- mile central section of 
the route, between Ivinghoe Beacon  near Dunstable and Avebury in Wiltshire, 
was adopted as The Ridgeway National Trail in 1972.  The Friends of The 
Ridgeway have long sought the up-grading of the rest of the Ridgeway to 
match National Trails standards. The Great Stones Way is a first, key initiative 
towards the achievement of this aim. 
 
The Great Stones Way will 
 

• Be a great 38- mile walk between the iconic stone circles of Avebury and 
Stonehenge, and historic Old Sarum; 
 

• Take in the historic sites of Silbury Hill, The Sanctuary, Adam’s Grave, 
Broadbury Banks, Durrington Walls and Woodhenge, as well as the Stone 
Age landscape of Stonehenge itself; 

 

• Offer a mixture of high level walking on the Downs and Salisbury Plain, 
open countryside through the Vale of Pewsey and footpaths through the 
picturesque villages of the Avon Valley; 
 

• Provide an attractive route for walkers linking Stonehenge and the railway 
at Salisbury, with good public transport connections along the route; 

 

• Appeal to visitors from the UK and from overseas seeking to visit the best 
of the heritage attractions of Wessex and Wiltshire;  

 

• Bring huge economic benefits to all the communities along the route. 
 

The Friends of The Ridgeway is grateful for the help of Plain Action, North 
Wessex Downs AONB and Wiltshire Council in enabling us to commission a 
full feasibility study to quantify the likely usage and the economic benefits that 
will accrue to the route corridor, and to determine the costs of the works 
needed to bring the route up to standards similar to those of a National Trail.    
 

         
 

European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development: Europe investing in rural areas 

Page 39



 
Map by courtesy of Wiltshire Council, under license from Ordnance Survey 

Page 40



 

  

 
 
WILTSHIRE COUNCIL 
 Item 12  
PEWSEY AREA BOARD 
22 November 2010 
 

 
 

COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP – LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 
WORKSHOP 

 
 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 

To provide recommendations from the meeting held on Wednesday 13 October 2010 
which was to look at scheme requests in the Pewsey Community Area and to 
prioritise and select schemes to be taken forward.   
 
The attendees were as follows:- 
 
Jerry Kunkler – Pewsey Area Board – Pewsey Division (Chair) 
Robert Hall – Pewsey Area Board – Pewsey Vale Division 
Peter Deck – Pewsey Parish Council 
Terry Eyles – Pewsey Parish Council 
Stanley Bagwell – Pewsey Community Area Partnership 
Colin Gale – Rushall Parish Council 
Patrick Wilson – Pewsey Chamber of Commerce 
Spencer Drinkwater – Wiltshire Council 
Mark Stansby – Wiltshire Council 
Bill Parks – Wiltshire Council 
Caroline Brailey – Wiltshire Council 
 
2. Background 

The Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2006/07 – 2010/11 sets out a scheme 
assessment framework to prioritise requests from the public for integrated transport 
schemes.   In November 2009 a report was taken to the Pewsey Area Board giving 
details about the Plan and the Scheme Assessment Framework was explained.  This 
framework is used to score schemes and depending on the results of that exercise, 
they are put forward for further investigation.   
 
Since then, the cabinet member for Highways together with Officers have been 
working to develop a process in which Area Boards can be more involved in the 
prioritisation of the schemes that have been submitted to the Highways Department 
over the last five or so years.    
 
The two schemes raised with the Area Board last year and agreed to be put forward 
at that time are now included on a list which also contains a number of other 
schemes that have been put forward over the last five years.  These have all now  
 

Page 41



 

  

 
 
been scored by Highway Officers using the assessment framework mentioned 
above. 
 
Pewsey Area Board now needs to agree which areas to take forward to the next 
stage, which will involve a Highways Officer visiting the site(s) which have been 
prioritised by the Area Board to provide an informal professional assessment to 
determine which ones are worthy of a feasibility study attracting professional fees.   
 
3. Main Considerations 

Highways Officers have assessed issues/transport scheme ideas which have been 
submitted to them using the framework contained with the Local Transport Plan.  
The results are attached.  The Community Area Transport Group agreed that the top 
five highest scoring schemes should be taken further which will involve an informal 
professional assessment to be undertaken by a highways officer to determine which 
of the five schemes are worthy of a feasibility study attracting professional fees.  
 
The five highest scoring schemes are: 
 

• Pewsey Station (North Street) – provision of a footway/crossing to Station 
• High Street, Great Bedwyn – Pedestrian/footway improvement at the junction 

of Church Street/High Street 
• A342 Rushall – Provision of footways/traffic calming 
• Upavon A342 – Pedestrian crossing linking Watson Close, Avon Square and 

the School with Downsview. 
• Swan Road Pewsey – Pedestrian access to and from Manor Court to include 

safe access to garage and village centre 
 
Whilst there was considerable debate and challenge by the members of the 
Community Area Transport Group on the Council’s scoring matrix, eventually there 
was the general acceptance that there was nothing better and the group elected to 
be guided by it. However it is not bound to follow it explicitly; the ultimate decision on 
schemes progression is taken solely by the Members. 
 

It is proposed that all of the highways issues which are on this list will be closed on 
the Area Board issues system.  This list will then be owned by the Pewsey Area 
Board and published on the Pewsey Area Board web page.   All schemes will stay 
on the list and be considered if funding is available in the future.   
 
The list will be called the Pewsey Area Board LTP scheme prioritisation list. 
 
4. Environmental Impact of the Proposals 
 

There is no Environmental Impact at this time as there will only be initial 
assessments and feasibility studies. 
 
 
 

Page 42



 

  

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

The Area Board has an allocation of £12,377. If the view of the assessment is that 
one or more schemes are progressed to a full feasibility study, the costs may well be 
large enough to absorb the total allocation. The consequence of this would be that 
costs for implementation would need to come from funds allocated to the Area Board 
in subsequent years (if any).   
 

6. Legal Implications 
 
There are no legal implications. 
 
7. HR Implications 
 
There are no HR implications. 
 
8. Equality and Diversity Implications 
 

Some of the schemes, if they get to implementation, will support people with mobility 
impairment. 
 
9. Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that::  
 
Pewsey Area Board agree to an informal professional assessment to 
be undertaken by a highways officer to determine which of the five 
schemes are worthy of a feasibility study attracting professional 
fees, and that the funding allocation of £12,377 be used to carry out 
further feasibility studies.  It should be noted that all five will have an 
initial highways officer assessment but not all will have feasibility 
work as there isn’t enough funding available.  
 
Pewsey Area Board agree to adopt the attached Pewsey Area Board 
LTP scheme prioritisation list and close those that are currently 
included on the Area Board Issues System. 

 
Report Author: Caroline Brailey, Pewsey Community Area Manager  
Tel No: 01225 718609 
E-Mail: caroline.brailey@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 
No unpublished documents have been relied upon in the preparation of this report  
 
 
 

Page 43



Page 44



ITEM 12

Appendix 1

Street/Area Location Village Scheme Description

No. of 

ped/cyc 

accidents

T & I 

Scores

Potential 

people 

benefitting

School 

Travel 

Scores

Local 

Amenity

Economy 

Scores Linkages

Enviro 

Scores

OVERALL 

SCORES

Pewsey Station (North Street Pewsey Provision of footway/crossing to station 2 4 7 10 8 0 17 5 53

High Street Great Bedwyn

Pedestrian/footway improvement at the junction of Church 

St/High St 0 1 6 10 8 0 14 5 44

A342 Rushall Provision of footways/traffic calming 0 6 3 10 2 0 12 5 38

Upavon A342 Upavon

Pedestrian crossing (linking Watson Close, Avon Square & 

the School with Downsview) 0 3 4 5 8 0 12 5 37

Swan Road Pewsey

Pedestrian access to and from Manor Court incl crossing(s) 

to Garage 0 4 7 0 8 0 12 5 36

Farm Lane Great Bedwyn Traffic calming/management 0 6 6 10 8 0 5 0 35

* A338 Collingbourne Road Burbage

Provision of footway from Burbage r/a to Marr Green Farm 

Shop 0 6 5 0 6 0 12 5 34

* A345 Grey Flags (Pewsey Road) Upavon Footpath 0 4 2 0 8 0 12 5 31

Browns Lane Great Bedwyn Traffic calming 0 5 3 10 8 0 4 0 30

A345 Prospect Pewsey Footway between Prospect and Pewsey Wharf 0 4 2 0 2 0 12 5 25

Honeystreet/Alton Barnes Honeystreet/Alton Barnes

Provision of footway from Honeystreet Bridge to Alton 

Barnes 0 5 3 0 2 0 14 0 24

Forest Hill Great Bedwyn Traffic calming 0 5 3 0 8 0 4 0 20

A345 Huish Corner Oare Traffic calming 0 3 4 5 4 0 2 0 18

Chapel Lane Upavon Traffic calming 0 5 2 0 8 0 2 0 17

Jarvis Street Upavon Traffic calming 0 5 2 8 0 2 0 0 17

Wilcot Road/Alton Road Wilcot Roundabout at crossroads by Golden Swan Pub 0 5 3 0 4 0 4 0 16

C8 Alton Barnes Alton Barnes Traffic calming (chicanes) 0 5 3 0 2 0 4 0 14

C38 Honeystreet Honeystreet Traffic calming 0 5 2 4 0 0 2 0 13

The Square (A345 Devizes Road) Upavon Traffic management 0 -2 5 0 8 0 2 0 13

The Manningfords Manningford Gateway Treatment 0 5 4 0 2 0 2 0 13

C8 Coate Road East Alton Priors Traffic Calming 0 5 2 0 0 0 2 0 9

Other Area Board issues which relate to road safety (not including speeding) that have not been scored

Marten Marten Traffic calming 

Chirton Village Chirton Traffic calming

Wilcot Road Pewsey Pedestrian Crossing outside school

Note: The figures are scores not numbers (apart from Column H)

T&I means Threat and Intimidation (volume, speed, % of L&HGVs and % of through traffic)

School Travel Scores = 5 if school has a travel plan, 5 if access is to school

Economy - Town Centres

Linkages - cycle/pedestrian network/access to station

Enviro scores - encourage walking

* It is understood that the parish council are proceeding with this scheme and it can be removed from the list.

This is currently an unclassified/C road - a review of these roads is due to take place and the parish council 

will be invited to submit their comments at this time. Warning signs have been repositioned to make them 

more effective.

A speed survey was carried out and the road did not meet the criteria for Community Speed Watch and 

cannot be considered for transport scheme funding.  The review of unclassified/C class roads may be an 

opportunity to reduce the speed limit to 20 mph

This is being submitted as a bid to the taking Action on School Journeys Funding scheme

P
a
g
e
 4

5



P
a
g
e
 4

6



Item 13 

Car Parking Strategy 
 

Consultation Feedback – Key Points 
 
Why Review Car Parking? 

• Move to Wiltshire Council – lack of consistency between former districts 

• Parking is wider than just charging – important part of local transport policy 

• Need to update existing strategy – price comparison with neighbouring areas 
 
Consultation Process 

• Informed people through: 
o Web portal and documents in libraries 
o Press release, Parish Newsletter and Area Boards 
o Emails and letters to some 8,000 contacts 

• Overall, some 600 people responded making over 5,000 comments 

• Reasonable response from Amesbury, Chippenham, Corsham, Devizes and 
Salisbury; more limited number of responses from most other areas 

• Concerted campaign by councillors and parish councils in South West Wiltshire 
 
Countywide Responses 

• Overwhelming support for economy as most important objective 

• Next highest support for meeting residents’ need for parking 

• Majority support for concept of banding towns and proposed land-use zones 

• Small majority disagreed with proposed bands 

• Large majority agree that town and parish councils should be offered ‘buy back’ and 
car park management opportunities 

• Majority selected ‘conventional’ (lowest) parking charges option 

• Little enthusiasm for proposed Sunday parking charges 

• Significant support for more pragmatic approach to residential parking in new 
housing developments 

• Overwhelming support for policy and process on residents’ parking zones 

• Majority support for council’s approach to parking enforcement 
 
Local Responses 

• 8 Total respondents 

• The co-ordination of the bus timetable with train times is non existent.  So you should 
not be surprised that anyone who has the choice uses a private car instead.  

• Because of the high cost alternatives, local roadsides are sought to avoid the station 
park.  

• There would be support for spaces for Carshare/Club and Community Transport 
Vehicles in Pewsey.  

 
Next Steps 

• Sept-Nov: Area Boards’ feedback presentations 

• Oct-Nov: consideration of consultation responses 

• Dec: Cabinet decision meeting (14th Dec) 

• Jan-Mar: statutory procedures 

• Apr: implementation of changes 

 

Page 47



Page 48



PEWSEY AREA BOARD CURRENT ISSUES – NOVEMBER 2010 

Division Summary of Issue Status Moved / Closed 

Pewsey Vale Speeding through Alton Barnes 
Community Area Manager to identify appropriate sites for survey 
equipment 

 

Pewsey 
Pedestrian access needed to 
Pewsey Station 

This has now been prioritised and will be assessed further  
To be moved to LTP scheme prioritisation list 

Pewsey Vale 
Speeding and pedestrian safety 
issues in Rushall 

This has now been prioritised and will be assessed further 
To be moved to LTP scheme prioritisation list 

Pewsey 
Swan Road lack of 
pavement/pedestrian safety 

This has now been prioritised and will be assessed further 
To be moved to LTP scheme prioritisation list 

Pewsey Vale 
Chirton A342 50 mph limit too high, 
dangerous junction 

The Parish Council have forwarded further information as part of 
the speed limit review in the hope that this road can be reduced 
to 40mph.  A Highways Officer has agreed to visit the site to 
assess the situation. 

To remain on the issues list for the time being 
(awaiting final results of speed limit review) 

Pewsey 
Vehicles speeding past St Francis 
School 

The Parish Council have submitted further comments to the 
speed limit review to strengthen the argument for a reduced limit 
along this road. 

To remain on the issues list for the time being 
(awaiting final results of speed limit review) 

B&B Road flooding in Grafton Passed to Divisional Highways Manager  

Pewsey Vale 
Speeding and rat running through 
Sharcott 

Speed Survey results have been received and the average 
speed was 33.6 mph – this is currently a 60mph limit.  The 
Highways department has been asked to consider the use of 
Single Track Road signs.  This request has been added to a long 
list of sites awaiting investigation.  

 

Pewsey Vale 
Speeding through the village of 
Chirton 

The speed survey concluded that the level of speeding is below 
the threshold for Community Speed Watch and transport scheme 
funding – review of C and unclassified roads to take place which 
may enable the speed limit to be reduced 

 

B&B 
Speeding in Marten and pedestrian 
safety concerns 

The Council has undertaken a review of warning signs within the 
village and as a result of this improvements have been made.  A 
review of speed limits on C and unclassified roads is due to take 
place following the review of A and B roads. 

 

B&B 
Need a footpath to Farm Shop 
Burbage 

The Parish Council have submitted an application for Area Board 
funding to enable a new footpath to be installed. 

To be closed 

Pewsey Vale Dangerous junction in Wilcot This is on the LTP scheme prioritisation list 
To be moved to the LTP scheme prioritisation 
list 

P
a
g
e
 4

9



Pewsey Speeding in Wilcot 
Speed survey indicates that this road meets the criteria for 
Community Speed Watch – Parish Council have been informed. 

To be closed 

Pewsey 
Dangerous to cross Wilcot Road 
outside school 

This is being submitted as a bid to the Taking Action on School 
Journeys funding scheme 

Closed (can be reopened if bid is rejected) 

Pewsey Speeding in Great Bedwyn 

The recent speed survey concluded that the level of speeding is 
below the threshold for Community Speed Watch (average speed 
33.8mph (30mph speed limit).  However it is eligible for 
temporary Community Speed Information Sign Boards.  
Community Area Manager to arrange. 

 

Pewsey 
Speeding within 30mph area in 
Bottlesford 

There are a few points of concern that need to be looked at in 
more detail. The Traffic Management team to look at this in more 
detail and provide further information in about a month’s time. 
The speed survey concluded that the level of speeding is below 
the threshold for Community Speed Watch (average speed 
33.8mph (30mph speed limit).  However it is eligible for 
temporary Community Speed Information Sign Boards.  
Community Area Manager to arrange. 

 

Pewsey Speeding in Woodborough 

The speed survey concluded that the level of speeding is below 
the threshold for Community Speed Watch (average speed 
43.8mph (40mph speed limit).  However it is eligible for 
temporary Community Speed Information Sign Boards.  
Community Area Manager to arrange. 

 

Pewsey Dog being exercised in a play area. 
Dog Control Orders will go to Cabinet for approval but they are 
unlikely to be adopted until January 2011.   

This will be closed as an Area Board issue – 
passed to officer for action following 
implementation of order. 

Abbreviations B&B – Burbage & Bedwyns 

P
a
g
e
 5

0



 

 1

 
WILTSHIRE COUNCIL        

ITEM 15 
PEWSEY AREA BOARD 
22 November 2010 
 

 
 

Provisional of additional Grit Bins 
 
 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 

To provide recommendations from a meeting held on Thursday 14 October which 
looked at grit bin requests from Parish Councils in the community area.   The full list 
of requests is included at the end of this report.  
 
The attendees were as follows:- 
Jerry Kunkler – Pewsey Area Board – Pewsey Division (Chair) 
Robert Hall – Pewsey Area Board – Pewsey Vale Division 
Stuart Wheeler – Pewsey Area Board – Burbage & Bedwyns Division 
Caroline Brailey – Wiltshire Council 
 
2. Background 

Wiltshire Council’s highways service performed well during the extreme weather last 
winter according to the response to the recent Parish Newsletter consultation, with 
65% considering the Council’s response to be good or excellent, and only 5% 
thinking it was poor or very poor.  One aspect that was of particular interest to the 
Parish Councils was the provision of grit bins. 
 
3. Grit Bins 
 
The Council provides grit bins at suitable locations on minor roads not routinely 
treated with salt.  The bins are filled with salt at the beginning of the winter season, 
and refilled periodically as the salt is used. 
 
Earlier this year the Council carried out a review of grit bins with the Parish and 
Town Councils to confirm the location and condition of the 983 existing bins.  As a 
result 65 of the bins are now being repaired or replaced. 
 
4. Proposal 
 
Following the severe weather last winter a large number of requests for additional 
bins were received.  It is not feasible to meet the cost of providing and filling the 422 
additional bins requested, but it would be possible to provide about 100 new bins. 
 
It is necessary to prioritise the provision of these bins which represent a 10% 
increase in bins across the county. 
 

Page 51



 

 2

It is proposed that each Area Board should have a 10% increase in the number of 
bins in their area. 
 
Pewsey Area Board had 56 bins, 28 new bins were requested.  Only 6 new bins can 
be provided. 
 
5. Allocation of New Bins 
 
In all areas the requests exceeded the allocations.  It is necessary for the Area 
Boards to decide the priorities for the allocation of the bins. 
 
Pewsey Area Board members have met to look at the requests and put forward 
some recommendations for approval at this meeting. 
 
6. Factors to consider 
 

• Grit bins are not provided on roads routinely treated by the Council’s gritters. 
• Salt must only be used on the highway.  It is not for use on private drives or 

other property. 
• The bins must be located so they do not obstruct the carriageway, footways or 

visibility. 
• They are usually placed on highway land, but may be placed on private land 

with the owner’s agreement. 
• The final locations will have to be agreed by the area highway staff to ensure 

road safety. 
 
7. Installing and Filling Bins 
 
The Council will arrange for the bins to be installed. 
 
Arrangements will be made for them to be refilled, but in severe weather the gritting 
and clearing of snow from the main roads may have to take priority. 
 
The Council can provide Parish Councils with 1 tonne bags of salt in order to speed 
up the refilling of grit bins provided they have suitable under cover storage and the 
capability to fill bins in their area. 
 
8. Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that the 6 new bins be allocated to the following Parish Councils:- 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Report Author: Caroline Brailey, Pewsey Community Area Manager  
Tel No: 01225 718609 
E-Mail: caroline.brailey@wiltshire.gov.uk  
No unpublished documents have been relied upon in the preparation of this report  

North Newnton 
 

Wilcot 
 

Wootton 
Rivers 

Easton Royal. 
 

Grafton Great 
Bedwyn 

Page 52



 

 3

 

Parish 
Number of 

Requested Grit 
Bins 

ALTON  

BEECHINGSTOKE  

BURBAGE 2 

BUTTERMERE  

CHARLTON ST PETER 1 

CHIRTON  

EASTON 1 

GRAFTON 6 

GREAT BEDWYN 5 

HAM  

HUISH  

LITTLE BEDWYN 1 

MANNINGFORD 1 

MARDEN 1 

MILTON LILBOURNE 1 

NORTH NEWNTON 4 

PATNEY  

PEWSEY 1 

RUSHALL  

SHALBOURNE  

STANTON ST BERNARD  

UPAVON 1 

WILCOT 2 

WILSFORD  

WOODBOROUGH  

WOOTTON RIVERS 1 

Total Grit Bins Requested 
= 28 
 

Page 53



Page 54



 

The Chairman 
Pewsey Area Board 
 

A Bid for pump-priming funding of £3262 
to re-establish the Shak Breakfast Club:  
 
 
Background.   
For many years the Local Authority Youth Services team ran a breakfast club and a lunch club at 
the Shak for the students of Pewsey Vale School.  This was part of their youth services 
programme and was staffed by 2 or 3 adults.  Access was free but students obviously had to pay 
for any food that they wished to consume.   
 
This excellent arrangement, together with the Youth Club activities in the evening, enabled the 
school to meet the Full Core Offer requirement for wrap-around childcare by signposting our 
students to this facility.  It is conveniently housed within the sports centre complex alongside the 
school. 
 
On 1 September 2010, Youth Services unilaterally closed the Shak for its breakfast and lunchtime 
activities: this was despite the vociferous lobbying by our students. 
 
The Requirement 
The students of Pewsey Vale School need to have access to a Breakfast club in order to meet the 
Extended School full core offer requirement.   
 
Historically some 30 – 50 students have used this breakfast club on a daily basis.  This demands a 
staffing level of 2 – 3 adults.     
 
The chairman of the Pewsey Area Board, Mr Jerry Kunkler, attended the meeting with Kevin 
Sweeney and Carol Grant on 24 August 2010 at which he recognised the need for the Shak and 
agreed to seek transitional financial support from the Pewsey Area Board.   
 
The purpose of this bid is to seek Pewsey Area Board funding support to provide the Breakfast 
Club Leader for a 12-month start-up period.    
 
The Breakfast Club Leader will be required for 1.5 hours per day (7.5hours/week), term time only.  
As Breakfast Club leader (SCH239) on Grade D, s/he would earn £8.15 an hour.  The full on-costs 
of the daily session would be £14.65, with the full annual on-costs from 1 January to 31 December 
2011 being £3262.   
 
Long term sustainability 
 
The attached spreadsheet shows the daily taking for the period January to July 2010.  The 
average taken is £14.78 but this does not include the costs of the ingredients.  This suggests net 
daily takings of, say,  £12.      
 

Page 55



 

There also needs to be a Breakfast Club Supporter (SCH282) on Grade B.  S/he would start on 
£6.63 per hour.  At 1.5 hours per day, the full daily on costs will be £11.91.  These costs can 
therefore be met from the daily takings.   
 
The costs of the Breakfast Club leader cannot currently be paid from the daily takings.  Therefore 
the business will have to grow over the period of the next year in order to become financially self 
sustaining.   
   
With the daily costs of some £30 (Leader £14.65, Supporter £11.91 & ingredients £ 3.00), we need 
to more than double the daily takings.  This is the challenge over the period of the next year: 
hence our request for financial support of £3262 for one year only, following the unilateral decision 
by Youth Services to close its breakfast clubs. 
  
 
 
Carol Grant 
Headteacher 
25 October 2010 
 

Page 56



Item 16a (1)

Appendix 1  

breakfast income

breakfast income January 2010  - July 2010

Jul-10 Jun-10 01-May Apr-10 Mar-10 Feb-10 Jan-10

01/07/10 £11.50 01/06/10 01/05/10 01/04/10 01/03/10 £18.80 01/02/10 £15.00 01/01/10

02/07/10 £16.90 02/06/10 02/05/10 02/04/10 02/03/10 £25.87 02/02/10 £13.28 02/01/10

03/07/10 03/06/10 03/05/10 03/04/10 03/03/10 £27.70 03/02/10 £13.35 03/01/10

04/07/10 04/06/10 04/05/10 £14.10 04/04/10 04/03/10 £18.88 04/02/10 £10.00 04/01/10

05/07/10 £7.70 05/06/10 05/05/10 £14.05 05/04/10 05/03/10 £29.91 05/02/10 £15.00 05/01/10 £10.52

06/07/10 £11.70 06/06/10 06/05/10 £18.05 06/04/10 06/03/10 06/02/10 06/01/10

07/07/10 £4.50 07/06/10 £11.30 07/05/10 £10.50 07/04/10 07/03/10 07/02/10 07/01/10

08/07/10 £19.05 08/06/10 £13.60 08/05/10 08/04/10 08/03/10 £18.96 08/02/10 £21.16 08/01/10

09/07/10 £18.00 09/06/10 £11.20 09/05/10 09/04/10 09/03/10 £22.00 09/02/10 £20.70 09/01/10 £2.80

10/07/10 10/06/10 £16.65 10/05/10 £11.65 10/04/10 10/03/10 £17.26 10/02/10 £15.98 10/01/10

11/07/10 11/06/10 £16.35 11/05/10 £11.85 11/04/10 11/03/10 11/02/10 £13.50 11/01/10

12/07/10 £7.90 12/06/10 12/05/10 £21.15 12/04/10 12/03/10 £20.40 12/02/10 £24.75 12/01/10 £4.22

13/07/10 £18.43 13/06/10 13/05/10 £16.40 13/04/10 13/03/10 13/02/10 13/01/10

14/07/10 £7.90 14/06/10 £8.60 14/05/10 £14.95 14/04/10 14/03/10 14/02/10 14/01/10

15/07/10 £13.05 15/06/10 £21.30 15/05/10 15/04/10 15/03/10 £15.50 15/02/10 15/01/10 £10.75

16/07/10 £16.25 16/06/10 £15.00 16/05/10 16/04/10 16/03/10 £15.06 16/02/10 16/01/10

17/07/10 17/06/10 £16.65 17/05/10 £15.50 17/04/10 17/03/10 £19.40 17/02/10 17/01/10

18/07/10 18/06/10 18/05/10 £13.15 18/04/10 18/03/10 £17.60 18/02/10 18/01/10 £7.65

19/07/10 £14.24 19/06/10 19/05/10 £20.30 19/04/10 £10.00 19/03/10 19/02/10 19/01/10 £7.50

20/07/10 £16.45 20/06/10 20/05/10 £18.40 20/04/10 £15.00 20/03/10 20/02/10 20/01/10 £9.78

21/07/10 £11.60 21/06/10 £17.00 21/05/10 £17.10 21/04/10 £16.30 21/03/10 21/02/10 21/01/10 £15.10

22/07/10 £4.55 22/06/10 £13.60 22/05/10 22/04/10 £4.70 22/03/10 £13.20 22/02/10 £20.70 22/01/10 £9.60

23/06/10 £10.80 23/05/10 23/04/10 £13.60 23/03/10 £20.20 23/02/10 £17.90 23/01/10

24/06/10 £18.00 24/05/10 £16.95 24/04/10 24/03/10 £15.55 24/02/10 £19.20 24/01/10

25/06/10 £20.25 25/05/10 £23.11 25/04/10 25/03/10 £12.90 25/02/10 £22.90 25/01/10

26/06/10 26/05/10 £18.15 26/04/10 £14.00 26/03/10 £10.40 26/02/10 £13.60 26/01/10 £7.55

27/06/10 27/05/10 £7.95 27/04/10 £18.55 27/03/10 27/02/10 27/01/10 £7.55

28/06/10 £12.10 28/05/10 28/04/10 £11.75 28/03/10 28/02/10 28/01/10 £11.29

29/06/10 £11.00 29/05/10 29/04/10 £16.20 29/03/10 £12.68 29/01/10 £17.58

30/06/10 30/05/10 30/04/10 £14.15 30/03/10 £12.50 30/01/10

31/05/10 31/03/10 £17.05 31/01/10 Grand total

totals per month £199.72 £233.40 £283.31 £134.25 £381.82 £257.02 £121.89 £1,611.41

Number of days of trading 16 16 18 10 21 15 13 109

Average daily takings £12.48 £14.59 £15.74 £13.43 £18.18 £17.13 £9.38 £14.78

P
a
g
e
 5

7



P
a
g
e
 5

8



Item 16a (2) 

 

Application to Pewsey Area Board for Youth Transport Funding 
 
Amount Requested:  £508.32 
 
To enable Wiltshire Youth Arts Partnership and P.O.P Youth Dance Project to 
transport Young People in the Pewsey Community Area to attend Arts and Dance 
events in Wiltshire for the next 12 months. 
 
Wiltshire Youth Arts Partnership and P.O.P Youth Dance Project are working in 
partnership to enable more Young People in Wiltshire to attend Young Peoples Arts 
and Dance events. 
Wiltshire has a thriving arts community and there are more opportunities for Young 
People to view and participate in arts activities. 
The majority of events tend to happen in the Trowbridge, Salisbury and Marlborough 
areas where we have successful theatre access and partnership working.   
 
Although we have support from Wiltshire Council Development Services for Young 
People, we still find that young people living in and around the Pewsey area find 
transport an issue to attend these events. 
 
The funding would be used to transport young people to the following:- 
 
DanceXpress Sunday 12th December 2010 & June 2011 at Theatre on the Hill, St 
Johns, Marlborough 
 
DanceXpress is Wiltshire’s Youth Dance Platform supported by P.O.P Youth Dance 
Project. 
 
Over 100 young people from P.O.P Dance groups across Wiltshire come together to 
celebrate and share their dance skills at a county-wide dance day.   
 
Throughout the day young people participate in dance workshops followed by a 
performance evening where they showcase their dance work which has been created 
with a professional dance artist. 
 
The Shak has been involved in this project for a number of years but it is proving 
difficult to provide transport for the group to attend the performance platform.  
 
Salisbury International Arts Festival 
May-June 2011 
 
P.O.P Youth Dance Project, Wiltshire Youth Arts Partnership, the Youth Service plus 
other partners are working closely with the Salisbury International Arts Festival team 
to provide workshops with Afro Reggae, a Brazilian Dance and Music group for 
Young People in Wiltshire.  These intensive workshops and performances will take 
place in and around the Salisbury Community Area but will be open for any young 
people in the county to participate in. 
These workshops will enable young people to work with a national touring company 
who deliver an inspiring programme of music and dance ranging through Samba, 
Reggae, Hip Hop and Funk.   
 
YNM Creative Juice  
The YNM Creative Juice event is organised by young people from the Salisbury 
creative panel. The panel is supported in kind by Salisbury Arts centre and Wiltshire 
youth arts partnership. The events take place in two venues and are hosted by young 

Page 59



Item 16a (2) 

 

people for young people. The panel select local and regional talent to showcase and 
inspire young people. The events focus on supporting young people in developing 
their learning, gaining valuable work experience with the chance to build links and 
confidence.  
 
MusicMatters – celebration event 20th August 2011 
MusicMatters is a project supported by Wiltshire youth arts partnership. The project 
support young people from 13-19 years to experience and take part in music 
workshops. MusicMatters strives to support rurally isolated young people access the 
arts. The final gig is the chance for all participants in youth settings or intensive 
workshops from across Wiltshire to showcase their work. This year the event was 
hosted by the MusicMatters creative panel, who scheduled the event, marketed the 
event and compared the night. It forms an integral part to the workshops, tasters and 
intensives that take place throughout the county.  
 
MusicMatters – Summer Intensive 
MusicMatters intensives support young people who have taken part in tasters to build 
on the work that they have initiated. Participants are given the chance to work with 
their peers to develop learning and growth of individual and group practice.  
  
Budget: 
 
Costs to provide a driver to transport Young People from the community area via 
Minibus/MPV to and from Arts events/projects listed below… 
 
DanceXpress x2 events (December and June 12pm-9pm) 
9 hours at £7.06 x 2 = £127.08 
 
Salisbury International Arts Festival 1workshop & performance 
6 hours at £7.06 = £42.36 
 
YNM Creative juice x2 events (July and October, daytime and evening)  
12 hours at £7.06 = £84.72 
    
MusicMatters celebration event- August 20th- one evening event  
6 hours at £7.06 = £42.36 
  
MusicMatters Intensive summertime course, 5 days in Salisbury  
6 hours at £7.06 = £42.36 x 5 days = £211.80 
 
Total Costs: £508.32 
 
Corinna Cuff 
Youth Dance Co-ordinator, Wiltshire Council 
 
Carrie Creamer 
Wiltshire Youth Arts Partnership, Youth Arts Co-ordinator 

Page 60



1 

 
 
WILTSHIRE COUNCIL Item 16b 
 

PEWSEY AREA BOARD 
22 November 2010 
 

 
REDUCING UNNECESSARY STREET LIGHTING IN THE PEWSEY COMMUNITY 

AREA 
 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 

1.1. To seek the Area Board’s approval of bids to the “reduced unnecessary 
street lighting” budget 2010/11. 

 

2. Background 
 

2.1. Wiltshire Council has been approached by a number of communities in the 
recent past seeking to reduce their carbon footprint and reduce light pollution 
of the night sky by reducing unnecessary street lighting.  Turning off 
unnecessary lighting for part of the night has already been successfully 
introduced in trial sites at Urchfont and Tidworth. 

 

2.2. Each of the 18 Area Boards has been allocated £5,000 to introduce part 
night lighting in their respective community areas in 2010/11.  This would 
enable lights selected by parish councils, subject to assessment by highways 
consultants, to be upgraded to a unit which automatically switches off around 
midnight and switches back on again around 5.30pm.  The £5,000 is 
expected to enable between 100 and 150 lights to be upgraded. 

 

2.3. Part of the consultation process and technical assessments includes the 
discernment of support or otherwise from residents, local businesses, the 
police, community safety and highways’ officers.  This discernment process 
includes checking to ensure that where lighting is needed all night for 
community or highway safety purposes, units are not upgraded. 

 

2.4. In the summer of 2010, the Pewsey Community Area Partnership invited all 
parish councils in this community area to consider whether or not they would 
like to take advantage of this scheme, and, accordingly, to consult with 
residents. 

 

2.5. In response, 6 parish councils have submitted bids  
 

3. Main Considerations 
 

3.1. The Area Board is asked to consider the bids detailed below: 
 

Table 1 
 

Parish No. of lights 

Pewsey  44 

Woodborough 20 

Wilcot 17 

Page 61



2 

Alton Barnes, Priors 
and Honeystreet 

8 

Marden 3 

Chirton* remainder 

Total 100+ 

 
* Chirton submitted a list of lights to remain on. 
 

3.2. Subject to the Area Board’s approval of these bids, a final assessment will 
be carried out by highways officers and confirmation given as to the total 
number of lights to be converted. 

 

3.3. Once final confirmation has been received, the process for upgrading the 
lights will begin and will take approximately 3 months. 

 
4. Implications 
 

4.1. Environmental Impact of the Proposals 
 

The benefits from the upgrade of street lights to part night lighting are two fold 
(a) reduced carbon emissions and (b) reduced energy cost.  It is estimated that 
for each individual street light conversion there will be a reduction of 40% in both 
carbon emissions and energy cost. 
 

4.2. Financial Implications 
 

The Area Board has a budget of £5,000 to allocate in 2010/11. 
 
The cost of the alterations to the lighting units will be paid for by the savings in 
energy consumption, and it is estimated that it will take approximately four years 
to pay back the cost of installation.   
 
£5,000 will pay for the upgrading of between 100 and 150 lights.   
 

5. Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the parish council bids detailed in Table 1 above be 
approved. 
 

 

Report Author: (Caroline Brailey – Community Area Manager) 
Tel No: 01225 718609   E-Mail: caroline.brailey@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Page 62



 
 

PEWSEY AREA BOARD – Forward Plan ITEM 18 

Please note:  This is a working document which is subject to change due to availability of relevant officers/partners and 
relevant timescales. 

Date Cabinet Member 
Attending 

Location Area Board Agenda Items Other events/items (provisional) 

10 Jan 
2011 

Cllr Jane Scott 
(Leader) 
 

Coronation 
Hall, Alton 
Barnes  

• Outcome of Leisure Facilities review 

• Dog Control Orders 

• Street Trading - TBC 
 

 
Standard items including Updates and 
Community Area Grants 

• Consultation on Budget 2011/12  

• Results of Flooding Consultation 
 

Chairman’s Announcements 

• Public Protection Enforcement Policy 

• Consultation on Waste Sites 

• Fairtrade Fortnight  

07 Mar 
2011 

Cllr Keith 
Humphries 
(Health and 
Wellbeing)  
 

Bouverie 
Hall, 
Pewsey  

•  
 
Standard items including Updates and 
Community Area Grants 

 
Chairman’s Announcements 

•  

09 May 
2011 

 Pewsey 
Vale 
School, 
Pewsey  

•  
 
Standard items including Updates and 
Community Area Grants 

 
Chairman’s Announcements 

•  

 
Community Area Manager: Caroline Brailey (caroline.brailey@wiltshire.gov.uk)   
Democratic Services Officer: James Hazlewood (james.hazlewood@wiltshire.gov.uk)   
Service Director: Ian Gibbons (ian.gibbons@wiltshire.gov.uk) Updated: 9 November 2010  

P
a
g
e
 6

3



P
a
g
e
 6

4


	Agenda
	
	5 Chairman's Announcements
	Item 05b - Wiltshire Intelligence Network
	Item 05c - Winter Weather - partnership working
	Item 05d - Pewsey Children's Centre
	Item 05e - Pewsey Library reopening

	6 Community Area Grants
	9 Partner Updates
	Item 09b - Fire update
	Item 09c - NHS update
	Item 09f - Grafton Parish update
	Item 09f - Rushall Parish Update

	10 Census 2011
	Item 10 - Census key messages summary

	11 The Great Stones Way
	12 Local Transport Plan (LTP) Funding Allocation
	Item 12a - Pewsey LTP Scheme Requests

	13 Car Parking Strategy Consultation Feedback
	14 Community Issues
	15 Highways Winter Maintenance - Provision of Grit Bins
	16 Update on Area Board Projects
	Item 16a (1) - Shak Bid appendix
	Item 16a (2) - Youth Dance Funding application
	Item 16b - Pewsey AB Reduced Street Lighting

	18 Future Meeting Dates and Close

